SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES REGULAR SESSION MEETING

April 4, 2024

The Board of School Trustees of the School City of Hobart met in regular session on April 4, 2024, in the Board Room at Hobart High School, 2211 East Tenth Street, Hobart, Indiana.

ROLL CALL: President Terry Butler asked Board Members to log in. The following Board Members and Administrators were present or absent as noted:

Board Members Present:

Terry D. Butler Rikki A. Guthrie Sandra J. Hillan Karen J. Robbins Donald H. Rogers

Stuart B. Schultz

Angelina Zepeda, HHS student representative

Board Members Absent:

Frank Porras

Madelyn Burton, HHS student representative

Tim Krieg

Administrators Absent:

Christopher N. King

Administrators Present:

Peggy Buffington

Bob Glover

Jonathan Mock

William J. Longer

EXECUTIVE SESSION: There was no executive session meeting held prior to the regular session meeting.

CALL TO ORDER: Terry Butler, President, called the meeting to order around 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: President Butler led everyone present in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

AUDIENCE: The following were present in the audience:

Bradley Keehn, Joan Martin School and Hobart Middle School parent Amanda Guthrie, Hobart High School student

<u>APPROVAL OF MINUTES</u>: Karen Robbins moved that the Board approve the regular session minutes of March 21, 2024. Stuart Schultz seconded. Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, and Butler. Abstain – Guthrie. Motion carried 5-0 with 1 abstention.

FINANCIAL REPORTS: President Butler indicated there were no financial reports for the Board's consideration.

COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS: President Terry Butler asked for comments on the listed agenda items. There were none.

PERSONNEL: Jonathan Mock, Director of Human Resources and Compliance, indicated the Personnel Report was included with the electronic meeting information for the Board's consideration.

Mr. Mock recommended approval and requested Board action.

Stuart Schultz moved that the Board approve the Personnel Report, as presented. Rikki Guthrie seconded. Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

The approved personnel items are as follows:

Contracts for Extracurricular Services (Club Duties) –

Veterans School, August 14, 2023/May 31, 2024: Natalie Otero, 3rd grade iREAD, \$270.00 Hobart Middle School, August 14, 2023/May 31, 2024: Randy Griffith, robotics, additional hours, \$837.00

<u>Homebound Teaching Contract</u> –

March 11/May 31, 2024: Katie Albertin, ELA and ILEARN, one hour per week and three hours total for ILEARN testing, \$60.11 per hour

Custodial Department – Adjustments of position, hours, and/or pay rate –

Bryan Cloney, transferring from the high school, Class I custodian, to the middle school, Class I custodian, hours and pay rate remain the same, \$16.38 per hour, effective April 1, 2024

RESOLUTION: National Volunteer Week: Resolution No. 2024-9 honoring National Volunteer Week, which is April 21-27, 2024, was presented for the Board's consideration. President Butler asked the audience members if it was okay with them to only read the titles of the three resolutions being presented or if they wanted the entire resolutions read. They were agreeable with only the titles reading aloud. It was noted that the administrators, teachers, and students appreciate everything that the volunteers do for our district, and they were thanked for their service.

Secretary Sandra Hillan read the title of Resolution No. 2024-9, aloud, as follows:

SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-9 NATIONAL VOLUNTEER WEEK "CELEBRATE SERVICE"

President Terry Butler called for a motion for the adoption of the resolution and a roll call vote.

Karen Robbins moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2024-9 to recognize the dedication of volunteers in making a difference for students in the School City of Hobart, as well as in the community of Hobart. Donald Rogers seconded.

In the discussion, Rikki Guthrie noted that volunteers give of their time, which is something they never will get back.

Vote on motion: Secretary Sandra Hillan called roll on the vote, as follows: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Nay – No one. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

Resolution No. 2024-9, as presented, displayed on the screens in the Board Room, and adopted, is as follows:

SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-9 NATIONAL VOLUNTEER WEEK "CELEBRATE SERVICE"

WHEREAS, National Volunteer Week was established in 1974 through a presidential executive order; and

WHEREAS, the tradition of recognizing volunteers on an annual basis has continued to be widely recognized and endorsed by subsequent U.S. presidents, governors, mayors, and other respected elected officials; and

WHEREAS, National Volunteer Week is about inspiring, recognizing and encouraging people to volunteer within their communities; and

WHEREAS, volunteers make a difference every day; and

WHEREAS, volunteers fill many roles by being listeners, role models, motivators, and mentors; and

WHEREAS, volunteers share their strengths and skills, lend a hand by taking time to make things better for someone else, and take pride in reaching out to see others smile; and

WHEREAS, volunteers should be accorded high public esteem in appreciation for the work that they do and their dedication and commitment to the students of the School City of Hobart.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the week of April 21-27, 2024, be designated as *National Volunteer Week* – "Celebrate Service."

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we urge the entire community of Hobart to appreciate the importance and recognize the service of volunteers within the School City of Hobart.

DATED this 4th day of April, 2024.

SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES

	BY
	Terry D. Butler, President
ATTEST:	
Condus I IIIIan Cogustamy	
Sandra J. Hillan, Secretary	

RESOLUTION: Recognizing National Student Leadership Week: Resolution No. 2024-10 was presented for the Board's consideration. The resolution recognized the week of April 22-26 as Hobart Student Leadership Week, and this was the fourth year that the Board has recognized student leaders within the school district. President Terry Butler asked Angelina Zepeda whether she wanted the whole resolution read aloud, and she indicated that reading only the title was okay.

Secretary Sandra Hillan read the title of Resolution No. 2024-10, aloud, as follows:

School City of Hobart Board of School Trustees

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 National Student Leadership Week

President Terry Butler called for a motion for the adoption of the Resolution No 2024-10 and a roll call vote.

Rikki Guthrie moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2024-10 recognizing Hobart Student Leadership Week. Seconded by Karen Robbins. Vote on motion: Secretary Sandra Hillan called roll on the vote, as follows: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Nay – No one. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

Resolution No. 2024-10, as presented, displayed on the screens in the Board Room, and adopted, is as follows:

School City of Hobart Board of School Trustees

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 National Student Leadership Week

WHEREAS, since its origin stemming from a Presidential Proclamation of Richard Nixon in 1972, National Student Leadership Week has been a national celebration of students sponsored by the National Honor Society, National Junior Honor Society, and National Student Council, and

WHEREAS, National Student Leadership Week is an annual theme-based week dedicated to recognizing and supporting the vital role of students leaders, and

WHEREAS, schools sponsor student leadership activities in order to provide students with vital experience in exercising a voice in matters of common concern, reconciling diverse interests, and selecting leaders, and

WHEREAS, student leaders are a positive influence on their peers, modeling good character and scholarship in and out of the classroom, and serve as change agents to improve the overall climate and academic performance levels of their schools, and

WHEREAS, student leaders do not automatically develop sound leadership skills and require trained, dedicated faculty advisers to help them develop the essential traits and characteristics of a leader and to provide the positive experiences necessary to expand their skills and foster their paths to becoming effective leaders;

WHEREAS, the support of school administrators and faculty, parents, and community members is necessary to help ensure the successful education of all emerging student leaders;

WHEREAS, National Student Leadership Week serves as an ideal time to bring attention to the important and integral contributions that student leaders and all student activities make in our nation's schools;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the week of April 22-26, 2024, be designated as Hobart Student Leadership Week.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board urges Hobart citizens to seek opportunities to recognize student leaders in our schools and support their training and activities as they prepare themselves for their future stations as leaders of our city, state, and nation.

DATED this 4th day of April, 2024.

	School City of Hobart Board of School Trustees
ATTEST:	Terry D. Butler, President
Sandra J. Hillan, Secretary	

RESOLUTION: Administrative Professionals Day: Resolution No. 2024-11 to recognize Administrative Professionals Day, which is April 24, 2024, was presented for the Board's consideration. President Butler asked Pat Schoon, recording secretary, if she wanted the whole resolution read aloud, and she indicated that only reading the title was sufficient.

Secretary Sandra Hillan read the title of Resolution No. 2024-11 aloud, as follows:

SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11 Administrative Professionals Day

President Terry Butler requested Board action and a roll call vote.

Karen Robbins moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2024-11 recognizing Administrative Professionals Day. Stuart Schultz seconded.

In the discussion, Mrs. Schoon received several complimentary comments from Board members. Mrs. Hillan noted that the Board sees the organization and paperwork that Mrs. Schoon prepares for them, but they do not see the daily office interactions and relationships. Dr. Buffington noted Mrs. Schoon was "amazing," was a hard worker, and others want to be like her. Mrs. Schoon thanked everyone for the kind comments.

Vote on motion: Secretary Sandra Hillan called roll on the vote, as follows: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Nay – No one. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

Resolution No. 2024-11, as presented, displayed on the screens in the Board Room, and adopted, is as follows:

SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11 Administrative Professionals Day

WHEREAS, administrative professionals make a difference every day; and

WHEREAS, every day administrative professionals support and listen to staff members, parents, and students; and

WHEREAS, administrative professionals lend a hand by taking time to make things better for someone else and taking pride in reaching out to see others smile; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate that administrative professionals be recognized for their dedication and commitment to the students of the School City of Hobart.

WHEREAS, for many students the administrative professionals are the first employee they see each morning; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that April 24, 2024, is designated as Administrative Professionals Day.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that School City of Hobart expresses its appreciation to these employees and commends the work they do.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of School Trustees urges the entire community of Hobart to appreciate and recognize the administrative professionals within the School City of Hobart.

DATED this 4th day of April, 2024.	SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART
	BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES
	BY
	Terry D. Butler, President
ATTEST:	
Sandra J. Hillan, Secretary	

CONSIDERATION: Trademark License Renewal Agreement for Hobart Pop Warner Little Scholars,

<u>Inc.</u>: Superintendent Peggy Buffington presented a renewal trademark license agreement with Hobart Pop Warner Little Scholars, Inc. to use the Yohan logo in connection with the uniforms worn by student athletes and on their coaches' shirts for the 2024 season. The new agreement will expire on April 30, 2025. She noted that no changes were requested from last year's agreement of using the logo on the coaches' shirts (either on front left chest or center tag line on back) and the pants of the uniforms (front waist line). A copy of the agreement was included in the electronic meeting information.

Karen Robbins moved that the Board renew the trademark license agreement with the Hobart Pop Warner Little Scholars, Inc. as presented and authorize the superintendent to sign the agreement on behalf of the School City of Hobart. Seconded by Rikki Guthrie.

In discussion, Mr. Keehn mentioned that he had read the resolution and noted the possibility of some duplicate verbiage, and Mrs. Schoon noted that the appearance of the signed agreements do not always look as clean and neat as the original because they have been transmitted as pdf copies to and from the designee electronically.

Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

EXTENDED/OVERNIGHT STUDENT TRIP: HHS JROTC 2024 Cadet Leadership Challenge Summer Camp: Dr. Peggy Buffington presented and recommended approval for the 2024 JROTC Cadet Leadership Challenge (JCLC) Summer Camp would be held at Camp Atterbury near Edinburgh, Indiana, from June 17 to 22, 2024. She noted the focus of the camp was leadership development and adventure training, not combat training, and the activities included rappelling, map reading, land navigation, water survival, and physical fitness. The Director of Army Instruction for the Indianapolis Public Schools is the Camp Commandant and his staff has the primary responsibility for planning and execution, and there would be a one to ten ratio of certified JROTC instructors to cadets.

LTC Buhmann and a group of 14-20 cadets in grades 9-11 would be attending the competition, and the group, if no more than 14, and LTC Buhmann would travel in a district activity bus. If more than 14 cadets attend, they would travel in a district school bus. The cadets will stay in troop barracks and will eat in the military dining halls. There is no cost for the cadets because the Army will furnish all meals and lodging.

Dr. Buffington requested Board action for the overnight trip for the JROTC.

Stuart Schultz moved and Donald Rogers seconded that the Board approve the request for the JROTC 2024 Cadet Leadership Camp Atterbury, as presented. Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

OVERNIGHT STUDENT TRIP REQUEST: Hobart Middle School Natural Helpers Spring Retreat:

Superintendent Peggy Buffington reviewed the request for the Hobart Middle School Natural Helper's Retreat to Cedar Lake Ministries in Cedar Lake. She noted that around 30-35 seventh and eighth graders will be traveling by school bus, leaving on May 3 and returning on May 4, 2024. Erin Swafford, and Scott Swanson will be leading the retreat, and two teachers, Leo Guzman and Dianna Ciszewski, will be chaperoning. The Natural Helpers retreat offers selected students an opportunity to experience a weekend of leadership, team building, and dealing with difficult situations as teens in order to create a more positive environment for all students at the middle school. The program helps to address the topic of bullying, along with drug and alcohol preventions, peer pressure, life skills, and leadership. Dr. Buffington mentioned the retreats were "a positive environment for the students" and was one of the activities that the attendees always remember and comment about. She said the retreat "helped them become leaders."

Dr. Buffington recommended approval and requested Board action.

Donald Rogers moved that the Board approve the Natural Helper's overnight study trip, as presented. Rikki Guthrie seconded. Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT: IDOE Title IV – A Grant: Dr. Peggy Buffington and Dr. Tim Krieg, Director of Secondary Education, highlighted the Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) Title IV-A grant that the district received in the amount of \$54,788.36. Last year's grant award was \$51,441.85. Dr. Krieg said the district was thankful to receive the grant to fund personnel and resources and said the district does not turn down grant monies. Dr. Buffington noted that the grant would offset the cost of the counselor at the Early Learning Center (ELC) and said the counselor was doing "an amazing job." Dr. Buffington commented that the original Title IV-A grant was a competitive grant that she and Dr. Krieg applied for when Dr. Krieg "was as green as green can be." Since then, it has become an annual allocation grant. Dr. Buffington indicated that when the ELC started, counselors from the elementary schools were there on a part-time basis, and this grant allowed for the school to have a full-time counselor.

Dr. Buffington requested Board action to approve the grant.

Rikki Guthrie moved and Stuart Schultz seconded that the Board accept the Title IV, Part A grant from the Indiana Department of Education and authorize the superintendent or her designee to execute any necessary documents for the grant.

In the discussion, Terry Butler inquired about the increase in the grant amount from the previous year and wondered if that meant the district's poverty level had increased like it does with a Title I grant. Dr. Buffington indicated that this grant was not like Title I and agreed with him that increased funding with Title I grants happens when the poverty level has also increased. Mrs. Hillan responded that currently, Title I was tied to "census poverty data," and this was dependent on the area you are in. She commented that the district she works in "was all over the place," and they never know what it will be.

Vote on motion: Aye – Rogers, Robbins, Schultz, Hillan, Guthrie, and Butler. Motion carried 6-0 in favor.

<u>UPDATES/ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS</u>: The Board received the following information:

- ➤ <u>School Information</u> weekly agendas from all of the schools except Veterans and Hobart High School, and two editions of the BricksCenter newsletter. In addition, the latest edition of the JROTC newsletter, *Cadet Life*, was included.
- ➤ Upcoming Activities/Events the latest list of upcoming activities/events. Dr. Peggy Buffington highlighted the following upcoming activities/events:

April 3 – Paraprofessionals Appreciation Day

April 6 – 12 – Week of the Young Child

April 8 – Kindergarten Kickoff @ the Early Learning Center, 6-7:15 pm

<u>April 8 – 12</u> – Kindergarten Registration online @www.hobart.k12.in.us/kindergarten

April 10 – Brickie Makers & Innovators Showcase, HHS Field House, 6-8:00 pm

April 15 – May 10 – ILEARN Test Window, 3rd – 8th grades

All students will complete English/LA and math testing. In addition, 4th and 6th grades will have a science assessment, and 5th grades will complete a social studies assessment.

<u>April 21-27</u> – National Volunteer Week – Dr. Buffington they will be getting a post out on social media and noted the district was "truly grateful" for our volunteers.

April 22-26 – National Student Leadership Week

April 24 – Administrative Professionals Day

Dr. Buffington commented on the upcoming eclipse and said that everything had been done that the insurance company required to protect the district's liability. She mentioned it was going get really through the end of the school year.

COMMENTS: From the administration, Dr. Buffington told Amanda Guthrie that the next cooking Voice and Choice was going to be a pizza party and hoped she had signed up for it, since she was "a frequent flyer" in the class. Amanda was signed up. Dr. Buffington told the Board that turn-out for the eighth grade parent night at the high school last night was "phenomenal." She was pleased with the presentation, the interaction of the parents, as well, and said the parents were pleased with the opportunities offered for their children. She complimented the high school administrators for doing a great job and said Angelina Zepeda did a wonderful job speaking about the opportunities from her own personal experience. She told the audience that she would be attending Boston University, which Dr. Buffington had not heard until her presentation. Dr. Buffington told Angelina to be sure she has a transcript when signing up for classes so she can advocate for the college coursework she has taken at Hobart University. She noted that a former Hobart graduate went to college in the Boston area, and the college would not accept any of the college credits earned in high school. Dr. Buffington

said that Madelyn Burton had planned to attend the parent night, but she was ill and was why she was not at tonight's meeting. Dr. Buffington indicated that all of the student representatives who have served on the Board were outstanding students. However, the past few years they have undertaken more responsibilities in their positions, and she said Angelina and Madelyn have been "amazing Brickies." Dr. Buffington told the Board that she and Janice Ryba, CEO of St. Mary's Medical Center will be meeting with the Commission of Higher Education later this month speaking with them about the school district/employer partnership that we have. She noted that many employers don't know how to form such partnerships. Dr. Buffington that this year's SAT results showed a huge improvement for our seniors. The administrators stressed using Khan Academy for 30 minutes a day because it has been proven to help students raise their SAT scores. Don Rogers' popcorn was one of the first motivations used during the testing process to raise test scores and for those who passed the SAT, they will be getting a sundae bar/Kona ice because they were the students' top two choices. Dr. Buffington also spoke about the state's ILEARN and IREAD-3 testing programs. It was noted these are one-time assessment tests. Students are getting ready for ILEARN testing later this month and the IREAD-3 testing for second and third graders was done last month. The test was adaptive and was not a timed test. Scores were lower than previous years. She thought something was wrong with the state's assessment and it not measuring what has been taught. Dr. Buffington mentioned that around 75 Early College students have stopped work or are in the senioritis stage of the year. She said they need to keep working or they would have to do mandatory credit recovery. Bob Glover offered his congratulations to the high school on the improved test scores and knew they had wanted this outcome for a long time. Chris King offered his congratulations to those recognized and also to Angelina Zepeda on her college selection. Jon Mock echoed the prior comments, offered his thanks to Dr. Buffington and Dr. Krieg, and noted his appreciation to all of the district's administrative professionals. He said the administrators "could not live without them." Since he was not at the last two Board meetings, he mentioned he was glad to see everyone. Dr. Tim Krieg echoed the previous comments about the administrative professionals. He mentioned he works with the seniors working on their A.S. degrees in their Capstone class through Ivy Tech, and he has had the opportunity to see their digital profiles from fifth grade through their senior year in high school. He highlighted some of Angelina's many activities/accomplishments from her capstone. Dr. Krieg noted that these students will leave Hobart High School with two years of college and thought it was an amazing opportunity for our students. He mentioned that Hobart's team has weekly contact with representatives from the Khan organization regarding their programs, and Dr. Krieg extended his thanks to Chris King and the Technology Department for their work with the ILEARN practice test for our students. .

From the Board, Don Rogers did not have any comments but was thanked for his popcorn, and he commented that he "didn't realize it was brain food." Karen Robbins extended her congratulation to Angelina Zepeda and thanked Pat Schoon for her work with the Board. She commented on seeing Amanda Guthrie running by her home in all kinds of weather. Stu Schultz extended his congratulations to Angelina, as well, and he thanked the administrators for all that they do. Angelina Zepeda offered her congratulations to all of the administrative professionals for all they do, and she thanked Dr. Buffington for her "kind words." Sandi Hillan congratulated Angelina and said she continues to be impressed by her. She thanked all the volunteers including her fellow Board members, Don Rogers, Karen Robbins, and Terry Butler, for giving of themselves and their time and going "above and beyond." She noted that she watched Amanda Guthrie when she was very young. She extended her "kudos" to everyone for the improved student test scores. She told everyone that her "jaw dropped" when she read how much the scores improved, and she thanked the whole team for all of their efforts to do this. Rikki Guthrie commented she was not "against incentivizing students" for their hard work. She said it was an investment in them and their success and hoped that the community and parents recognize this, too. She extended her congratulations to Angelina and hoped she has snow shoes for next year. She thanked Pat Schoon for keeping the board in line and noted she was appreciated. Terry Butler extended his congratulations to Angelina Zepeda and thanked Pat Schoon and all of the other administrative professionals in the district for all that they do. He commented that Khanmigo assists a student in understanding and learning their how to do problems and will not accept anything less than 100%. The student works the problem over and over to reach that goal and get stronger in the subject area. He said it was useful to parents when they are able to observe the use of the program with their student. Dr. Buffington mentioned that one of our EL students wanted to ask Sal Khan, who was an immigrant, a question on how he became a successful, international CEO here in the United States. Because of her friendship with Sal Khan, she asked him about doing this, and he agreed. This will be done through a virtual Town Hall so students and teachers throughout the school district will be able to stream with Mr. Khan where he will be answering at least ten students' questions and hopefully a couple more from the over 700 student questions that were submitted. It was noted this will be a tremendous undertaking our Technology Department. Dr. Buffington mentioned that Mr. Khan developed Khan Academy because his nephew needed help with math. Then, when "guard rails" were needed with A-I, he developed Khanmigo, and she was proud of how our teachers have embraced using the program. She said the elementary students really like the program, the middle school students are not as fond about using it, and the high school students just want the answer so they use other A-I Chabot's. Mr. Butler told Angelina that it seems when students go to Boston for college, they seem to stay there and not return to our area. He also noted that because of the road construction south and west of town, plan on an extended delay at Marcella and 61st Avenue. The delay for the construction of the roundabout at Cleveland Avenue and Route 51 was also mentioned, and Mr. Mock thought the delay would probably mean the completion date for the roundabout would happen during apple season at the orchard. Because of all the chaos with road closures throughout the city, Sandi Hillan could not comprehend how the Transportation Department was handling the issue. Dr. Buffington said there was a lot of frustration, but they

use their routing software to re-route around the road closers. Mr. Butler shared a tidbit of information about cutting through a business parking lot and said it was not illegal to do so as long as you "stop before leaving the parking lot."

There were no audience comments.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Board, President Butler adjourned the meeting around 7:50 p.m.

NEXT MEETING: The next regular session meeting is April 18, 2024.

	BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES SCHOOL CITY OF HOBART
	By
ATTEST:	Terry D. Butler, President
By Sandra J. Hillan, Secretary	

Submitted for Approval: April 18, 2024